
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SO\JTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, 

Plaintiff. 

v. 

Walter, Scott, Lev & A"svciatcs, LLC, 
-~vlic3ael Rns . .;, 
:Nfaxim Yampolsky, 
Edward Sapienza, Jr., 
Frank Schiavone, 
Michael Korobl)V, and 
Boris Shuster, a,Kfa/ Robert Shllstcr, 

) 
) 

) 
) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Defendants, and ) 
) 

Vhchacl Ed>•/ardR Trading Group. Ltd", ) 
JSG Fretghl Systems. lnc , } 
Shuster, Shuster & Shuster. I Jd,. ) 
BU Consulting, Inc", ) 
Winn fndustncs Div1;;;ion ofOntarit>, Limited ) 
( 1430214 Ontario, Limited), and ) 
The Fuzzy Group, Iuc.. ) 

) 

RcliefDefendants. ) 

Order for Entry of .Judgment by 
Default, Permanent Injunction, 

Ancillary Equitable Relief aud Civil 
Monetary Penalty Against 
Defendant Frank Schiavone 

On November 18, 2003, the U.S. Commodity FulUres Trading Commission 

("Commission" or "CFTC") filed a Complaint charging Defendant Frank Schiavone and others 

("'Defemlanf' or "Schiavone'') with cheating. defrauding and decci ving investors in an Hlegal 

off.exchange foreign currency futures scheme in violation of Scrtion 4(b)(a){2) of the 

Commodity Exchange Act ("Act"), 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2) {2002). and Commission Regulation 

("Regulation'') l.1{b), 17 C.FR. § l.l(b} (2001 ). Tbc Complaint also charged that Schiavone, as 

;:m owner and operator of \Valtcr, Scott, Lev & Associates, LLC ("WSL"), directly or indire-ctly 

controlled "\VSL and dtd not net in good faith or knowingly induced, directly or indirectly, 



WSL's violations of Sectioos 4(a) aod 4(b)(a)(2) of d1e Act. 7 U.S.C. §s 6(a) and 6b(a)(2J 

(2002), and RegnlatJon Ll(b}. 17 CF.R. § Ll{b) (2001), making Schiavone Habie as a 

controllmg person ofWSL tor WSL's violatiOJOs pursuaot to Section 13(b) of the Act. 7 U.S.C. § 

13c(b) (2001). 

On ~ovembcr 20, 2003, Schiavone was properly served with the summons, complaint 

and supporting papers pursuant to Rule 4(e)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure ('Ted. R. 

Civ. P:'). Schravonc faited to ansv .. ·er the Complaint within the tie:te permitted hy RuJe 12(a)( 1) 

ofthe Fed. R. Civ. P. and provided by this Court in the November 7, 2006 Orckr lifting the stay 

of proceedings for Schiavone and pr0\·idi:1g l1im with twenty days to file an ans\ver to the 

Complaint. Schiav-one ts not an mfant, ln..:ompetem person. or in the mllltary. Accordingly. on 

Decemhcr 7, 2006, the Clerk of this Court entered. a cc-:-tificatc of default against Schiavone 

pursuant to Local Rule 55 [and 55( a) of the Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 

The Commlsswn has now submitted its Application for Entry of J:~dgment by Default 

with Injunctive Rt'hef, Clvtl Monetary Penalties. and AncJihtry Equitable Rehcf Against 

Schiavone ("Apphcatlon") pursuant to Fexl R. Civ. P. 55(b)(21 and Local Rule 55.2{b). The 

Coult has carefully considered the Complaint, the allegations of which are well~plcaded and 

hereby taken as true, the App-lication, and other w::-ittcn submissions of the Commission filed 

with the Court, and being fully advised, hereby: 

GRANTS the Commission's Application against .Schiavone and enters finJings of fact 

and condus10ns of law finding Schiavone liable as to all violations alleged in the Complaint 

The Court further grants the Commission's request for injunctive rcltcf, restitution, disgorgement 

and a cJvil monetary pcnaJty. Accordingly, the Court now issues the fOliowmg Order for Entry 



of Judgmt-'Ilt by Default, Permanent Injunction, Ancillary Equitable Relief and C1viJ Monetary 

Penalty Against Defendant Frank Schjavone (''Ordtr"). 

I. HNDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

A. .Jurisdiction and Venue 

Thls Court has jurisdiction over the subject maHer of this action and Schiavone pursuant 

to Seclion 6c of the Act, 7 U.S. C. § Da- L which authorizes Uw Commission to seek injunctive 

relier ngninst any person "vhenever 1t shall appear that such person has e:tgaged, is engaging, or 

JS about to ell gage ln any act or practice constituting a violation of ::my provision of the Act or 

any nile, regukttion, or order thereunder. 

Venue prnperly lies \Vith thts Court pursuant to Section Gc(e) of the Act, 7 US.C ~ t3a. 

1, in that Schiavone was tOund in, inhabited, or transacted business m this district. and the acts 

and practices in violation of the Act and Regulations occurred within this distrkt, among other 

places. 

B. Findings of Fact 

W.SL was a Nc\v York limited liability company organized in 1998 with an office at 90 

John Street, Suite 407, New York, New York 10038. It has never been registered with the 

Commission in any capacity. 

Schiavone resides in the Federal Correctional Institution in Fort Dtx, New Jersey. 

Schiavone h.:t.<: never been regjstered witll the Commisston. 

Schiavone \vas one of the four individuals who formed WSL and serveU as WSL 

Treasurer. 

From at least January 1999 to at least April2002 (""relevant time period"), Schiavone and 

others tfaudulcnt\y solicited more than 850 customers for the purpose of trading foreign currency 
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contracts which were, m fRet, illegal off~exchange foreign currency futures contracts, lnstead of 

actually trading cHeats' funds, Schiavone misapproprjated a substantial portion of the fnnd.s 

obtained from cust01r.ers. At the same time, Schiavone misled investors with false monlhly 

accouC~t statements sho,ving considerable p:-oiits. Schiavone then abruptly notified customers 

that alleged catastrophic trading losses had wiped out their funds, Schiavone knew that client 

tlmds were hcing misappropriated. that the monthly account statements showing profits were 

false ;1nd !bat the clients' losses were nol due to catastrophic trading losses. 

During the re)~;;vaut tune period, at least $6,R00,951 \Yas misappr0priatcd froru customers 

hy Schiavone and other~. 

SchJavonc, through WSL, marketed WSL's managed f(>rergn currency trading accounts 

~o mdnridti:tls .. vho had <.1ssets totaling less thnn $5 million and had no business, personal or other 

need to take or make delivery in f~)felb'TI cuiTency or to hedge against movements m the foreign 

currency markets. Instead, mvestors entered into these transactions to speculate ami profit from 

anticipated price fluctuations in tbe markets for these currencies 

investors did not anticipate taking and did not take delivery of the foreJgn currencies 

they purchased as a consequence of these investments. WSL did not rcqmre tts clients to set up 

banking relationships to facilitate delivery of the fOreign currencies. Onc-e the market moved m a 

favorable direction, investors expected, ba~ed on the represcntaiions made to them, WSL to 

liquidaic their investments by auth0rizlng the sale of the contract and taking the profits. l'he 

WSL customer account agreetnt.'llt made reference to the margining and settlement of 

transactions in WSL customer accomHs. and one full paragraph in the customer agreement 

de.Gned settlement procedure..<: whereby all profits and losses were reflected in customer account 

statements the fOllowing month. WSL's account agreement and solicitation materials provided 
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t]1at comm1ssions are charged on a round-tum basls. 1'1oroover, WSL's brochure assured 

customers that the\r principal investments \VOuJd be protected because WSL would be 

reSjlOnsible !Or all margm requirements, and positions would be exited when stop losses are 

tngg:crcd. 

WSL \Vas not a proper cmmterparty or an affiliate or a proper countcrparty under the Act 

authonzed lo engage in foretgn currency futures transactions '.vith retail customers. VVSL was 

not a financial institution, a broker or dealer, or an associated person of a broker or dealer. \VSL 

was not a Futun:s Comtmssion Merchant ("FCM"'), or an affiliate of a FCM. WSL did not 

conduct !ransactiocts on a facility designated as a contract market or registered as a derivatives 

tramaction execution facility, 

\VSL, did ::1.ot cond;1ct the foreign currency futures transactions ou. or subject to the rules 

of a board of trade thtll had been designated by the CFTC as a ;::ontr2ct market. WSL. did not 

conduct traHsactions on a facility registered as a derivatives tran~adion execution facility. 

Prior to December 21, 2000, WSL's conduct was such that it operated as a board of trade 

based upon its being a public marketplace oiTering standardized futures contracts to buyers and 

seller5 with the availability of price infOrmation and an execution and settlement mechanism. 

WSL mass marketed to small investors by providing a foreign currency trading facility that 

allowed its customers, with a minimum deposit, to become "traders" at its board of trade. WSI. 

recruited traders, many of whom have no prior trading experience, and urged them to solicit the 

general public through cold calls to invest with \VSL. WSL also provided the mechanism for 

traders to g~:t prices, make orders, execute orders, and offset those orders with matching opposite 

transactions. WSL further confirmed, both ondly and in writmg, that the tmdcrs' orders had 
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been executed. WSL's orders were standardized, leveraged contracts of its own devise. The 

contracts \Vere closed out by entering into an offsetting transaction rather than by raking deHvery. 

C. Conclusions of Law 

1. \VSL~s Transactions ·were Futures Contracts. 

The fore-ign cuxrency c<mtrncts ot1ered and sold by Schiavone, through WSL, were 

lhtmcs contracts. \VSL wa~ not a proper counterparty or an aflihatc of a proper couuterparty 

autho:izeU under the Ac1 or Regulations to engage in foreign currency future transactions wlth 

rctall customers. 

2. Schiavone is Liable for Violations: of Section 4b(a)(2) of the Commodity 
Exchange Act and Commission Regulation l.l(b). 

During the relevant ti:nc period, Schiavone cheated or defrauded or anempted to cheat or 

defraud investors or prospective investors of WSL \viHfully made or caused to be made false 

reports or iilatements, and ;villfuHy deceived or attempted to deceZvc invesk~rs or prospective 

investors hy, among other thmgs. knmvingly: m!sappropriaiing funds received from investors: 

and maki:lg 13Jse statements regarding trading losse-S, the risks of trading foreign cnnenclcs. I he 

legitimacy of their operation, and the safety of investor funds. all in violation ofSecti~•n4b(a)(2) 

of the Act_ 7 U.S.C § 6b(n)(2) (200!), and Regulation l.l(b), 17 C.F.R.§ U(b) (2002). 

Schiavone's conduct \-Vas in connec-tion with the orders to make, or the making of, contracts of 

sale of commodities for future delivery, made or to he made, for or on behalf of any other 

persons, ami such contrads for tl1tme delivery were or could be used for the purposes set forth in 

Section 4b(a)(2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C * 6b(a) (200!). 

During the relevant time period, Schiavone, as an owner and operator ofWSL, dJrectly or 

indirectly controlled WSL ;md its schemes and did not act in good filith or knowingly induced, 

directly or indirectly, tht: acts constituting WSL's violations of Section 4b(a)(2) of the Act, 7 



US.C:. § 6b(a)(2l (2001), and Regulation l.l(b), 17 CYR.§ l.l(b) (2002). Thus. pursuant to 

Section 13(b) of the Act, 7 U.S.C § i3c(h) (2001), Schiavone is liable for WSL's violations of 

SectiOn 4b(a)(2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. ~ 6b(a)(2} (2001), and Regulation l.l(b). 17 C.F.R.§ l.l(b) 

(2002). to the same extent as WSL. 

3. Schia\'One is I .iahlr for Violations of St>etion 4(a) of the Commodity 
Exchange Act. 

Du;-ing the :dcvant time period, WSL offered to enter :nto, execetcd, confirmed the 

e:\.cculion ot: or wnducled an office or busint~ti::> m the Unjh:d St11tes fUr the purpose of soJicjting, 

accepting any order for. or otherwise dealJng in transactiOns in, or in connection with, a contract 

1\)f t!1e purdnl;,e or sale of a commodity fOr f11ture delivery when: (a) such transactions were not 

conducted nn or subject ~o the mks of a boanJ of trade which wa.o; Llesignated or registered by the 

CFTC a.s a contract market or derivatives transaction execution facility for such cnmmOLlity, and 

{h) st:ch contracts were not executed or cor:.snmmated by or through S';.!Ch contract market, in 

violation of Section 4(a) of:hc Act, 7 U.S, C.§ 6(a) (2001). 

During the relevant tinw penud, Schiavone, as an ownEr and operator of WS.L, diiectly or 

indirectly contmlled \VSL and did not act in good faith or knowingly imluced, directly or 

indin:cUy, \VSL's acts cnnslilut!ng the v1olations of Section 4(a) of the Act. 7 U.S.C. § 6(a) 

{20()1 ). Thus, pursuant to Secbon l3(b) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13c(b) (200 1 ), Schiavone is liable 

for WSL's violations of Section 4(a) uf the Act, 7 U S,C. * 6(a) (2001) to the same extent as 

WSL. 

4. A Permanl'nt Injun ... ·tion~ Civil Monetary Penalty, and Other Equitable 
Relief are Appropriate Remedit•s. 

Peml:!nent i!1junctivc relief is warranted in hght of the ee,-rregious nature of Schiavone's 

k.>)owing fraudulent solicitation t1f customers m a scheme to systematically defraud the puhlic 
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through the offer and sale oflllcgal foreign currency ftJturcs contracts, These filets demonstrate a 

reasonahle likelihood of l11ture violations. 

Imposition of a civil monetary penalty is appropriate in this case as Schiavone's 

violdtions of the Act were intentional and directly affected the numerous VlCtlms of this fraud. 

Likewise, the remedies of restitution and disgorgcment are appropriate to compensaK the victims 

of Schiavone's wrongful acts and to deprive Schiavone of the use of ill~goHen gains, 

II. ORDER FOR RELIEF 

A. Permanent Injunction 

IT IS TllERF:FORE ORDERED THAT· 

L Schiavone is permanently restrained, enjoined and prohibited from directly or 

indirect1y: 

A Cheating or defrauding or attempting to cheat or defraud other persons, or 
wiiltUIIy making or causing to be made to another person uny fJ.lse report 
or s!atement thereof. or -..villfully entering or causing to be entered for 
another person any false record thereof~ or willfully deceiving or 
attempting to deceive another person by nny means whatsoever m regard to 
any order or contract or the- disposition or execution of any order or 
wntract, J.'f ln regard to any act of agency performed with respect to any 
urder or contract for another person, in or in connection with any o:·der to 
make, or the making of, any contract of sale of any commodity for future 
delivery, made, or to be made, for or on behalf of any other person lf such 
contrad for future delivery is or may he used lOr: 

{ 1} hedging -i!ny transaction in interstate commerce m a 
commodity or the products or byproducts thereof, 

(2) determining the price basis of any transaction in interstate 
commerce in such commodity; or 

(3) delivering any ct1mmodity sold, shipped, or received m 
interstate commerce for the fulfillment thereof 

ln violation of Section 4b(a)(2) of the Act, 7 Ll.S.C § 6b(a)(2) (2001) and 
Section 1.1 (h) oft he Regulations, 17 C.F.R § 1.1 (b)(2001); mtd 
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B. Offering to enter into, entermg into, executing, confinning the execution 
ol~ or conducting any office or business anywhere in the United States, its 
territories or possessions for the purpos~: of soliciting, accepting any order 
tOr, or otherwise dealing in, any transaction in, or connection >.vith, a 
contract for the purchase or sale of a conunodity t;)r future delivery in 
violation of Section 4(a} of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6(a)(200J). 

2. Schiavone is funher pE'nnanently restrained,, enjoined and prohthJted from directly 

or ind;rcctly; 

A. Ttacling on or subject to the rules of arty registered entity, at that tem1 is 
dcfir:cd in Section la(29) of the AcL 7 U.S.C. § I a(29); 

B. Engaging in, controlhng or directing the trading for any oommothty 
intcrcz.:t account for or on behalf of any other person or entity, whether by 
po\\-er of attorney O!'" ot;,_crvase; 

C. Soliciting or acceptillg any funds fi·orn any person in connection with the 
pmchase or sal~ of any cormnoJity interest; 

D. Applying fbr reglstrnt1un or daimlng exemption from registration with the 
Comnnssion in :tny capacity. and engaging in any activity rcquinng suc-h 
registration or exemption from registration with the Commission, except 
as provided for in Regulation 4-.14 (a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 4. J 4(a)(9) (2004), or 
acting as a principal, agent or any other nfficcr or employee of any person 
registered, exeJ'lpted from registration or required to be registered with the 
Commis:mm, except as provided for in Regulation 4 14 (a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 
4.l4(a)(9)(2004 ): 

E. Fn!...:ring mto ;.my conu!lodity it~terest transactions for his own personal 
account, for any account in which he has a direct or indirect interest and!or 
bavmg any commodity interests traded on his behalf; andfor 

F Engaging in any business activities related to commodity interest trading. 

B. Civil !\.lonetary Penalty 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that as of the date of entry of this Order, Schiavone shaH 

pay a ctvil monetary penaHy m the amount of $288,279. consisting of triple his monetary gain of 

$96,093. plus JK'St~jUtigmenl interest Post~judgmcnt interest shall accrue beginning on the date 

of entry of this Order and shaH be determined by using the Treasury Bill rate prevailing on the 
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- date of entry of this Order pursuant to 28 U,SJ:. § 1961. All pa)mcnts: made by Schiavone 

pursuant to this: Order shaH be applied fint to satisfy Schiavone's Civil Resbtution and 

Disg~._)rgernent obligations and, upon sntist3.ction of such obligations, shall therea11cr be applied 

to satisfy the civiJ monetary pcnalt;r 

Schiavone shall piry this penalty by elecrmruc funds transfer, U.S. p~.1stal money order, 

certified chcrk, bank cashier's check, or bank mom:'y order. If payr.1ent is lo he made hy other 

than electronic fund$ transfer, Schiavone shall make the payment payable to the U.S. Com.·uodhy 

Futures Trading Commission and send to the followmg address: 

Commodity Futures. I ntding Commission 

Division of EniOrcerr::ent 

ATTN· Marie Batemru1- A.;'V1L-300 

DO!'!FANMMAC 

6500 S_ Macarthur Blvd 

Oklahoma City, OK 73 i6SI 

Ifthc payment is to he mn.de by electronic funds mmsfcr. Schiavon~ shall contat:t Marie Bateman 

at 405--954~fl569 for instructions. Schiavone sha1! accompany the payment of the- penalty with a 

cover letter that identifies Schiavone and the name and docket numbc'r o{ this proceeding. 

S:.·hiuvonc shall simultancousiy transmit a copy of the cover letter and the tbrm of 

payment to (a) the Director and to the Office oi Cooperative Enforcement, Division of 

Enforcement, U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, at Three Lafayette Centre, 1155 

21 sl Street, 1'\W, Washington, DC 20581, and (b) Regional Cmmsel, U.S. Commodity Futures 

Trading Commission, Eastem Rt::gional Office, nt i40 Broathvay, 191
h Floor, New York. :NY 

10005, 
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C. Disgurgement and Restitution 

I. Oisgorgement 

IT IS FURTHER ORDt:R~:D that as t>f the date of this Order, Schiavone shall disgorge 

all benefits received, directly or !1idirectly, ffom a<:ts or p:act!ces which wnst1tute violations of 

the Act at:d Regulations as described, Schiavone is thcrefort: liable to disgorge his tll-gotten 

gains in lhe amount of $96,094 plus pn>JUdgmcnt mterest and post-judgrnen! interest. Pre­

JUdgment mterest from Jamwry l, J 999 to the date 1)f th1s 0:-der shall be deterrmncd by using the 

underp.tyment ra~e established quartcr~y by the Intt;mal Revenue Service pursuanf to 26 U.S.C. § 

662l(a)(2). Po::>t-ju{!gment interest shall accrw:~ hcginmng on the date of entry of this Order and 

shall he detennined by using the Treasury Bill rate prevailing on the date of entry or this Order 

punmant to 28 l;.s.c. § 1961. 

All d:isgorgcmcnt payments made by Schiavone shall be used to pay rcst1tutlon to the 

defrauded customers. Schiavone's disgorgcmcnt obligation coincides with his restitution 

obligation. ;;uch that satisfaction in any part or hi<; restitution obligation shall sunul:anco:Jsly 

result in sat::&!ction of his d;sgorgcmcnt •Jb!igatJon to the same extent. Further, Schiavone's 

disgorgement obligation in this matter coinc1des with the criminal judgment restitution 

obligation entered against him O:cl Scptcrnbcr 10, 2004. U.S. District Court fOr the Southern 

District of l"e'-v York in l_iS ·v Ross. et ot, S,I)J.;:_y_ Docket No. 03 Cr. BOO ("criminal 

judgmenl obligation"). Accordingly, satlsfactlon in any part of Schiavone's criminal JUdgment 

obligation shall slmultaneously result in satisfaction of Schiavone "s disgorgemcnt obligation to 

the same extent. 

S<:hiavone shall pay disgorgement to Brian Rosner, Esq., the Court~appointed Receiver, 

Rosner & Napierala, LLP, 26 Broadway, 22nd Floor, New York, NY 10004-24424 by electronic 
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funds transfer, or by U.S. postal money order, certified check, bank cashier's check or bank 

money order, under cover of a letter that identifies Schiavone and the name and Docket number 

of the proceeding; Schiavone shall simultaneously transmit a copy of the cover Jetter and the 

fOm1 of payment to the Director and to the Office of Cooperative Enforcement, Division of 

Enforcement, U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, at the following address: Three 

Lafayette Centre. 1155 21'1 Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20581, and to the Regional Counsel, 

U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, Eastem Regional Office, at the following 

address: 140 Broadway, 19111 Floor, New York, NY 10005. 

2. Restitution 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that as of the date of this Order, Schiavone shall pay and 

be jointly and severally liable with his co-conspirator in this matter (CFTC v. Walter, Scott, Lev 

& Assoc., LLC, et al_, Docket Number 03 CV 9120 (GBD)), Michael Korobov, for restitution to 

defrauded customers 111 the amount of $6,800,951 plus pre-judgment illld post-judgment interest. 

Pre-judgment interest shall accrue from January 1, 1999, to the date of this Order and shall be 

detem1ined by using the underpayment rate established quarterly by the lntemal Revenue Service 

pursuant to 26 U.S.C. ~ 6621(a)(2). Post-judgment interest shall accrue beginning on the date of 

entry of this Order <md shall be detenmned by using the Treasury Bill rate prevm.ling on the date 

of this Order pursuilllt to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. Schiavone is ordered to make such payments to 

Brian Rosner, Esq., the Court-appointed Receiver, Rosner & Napierala, LLP, 26 Broadway, 2211
d 

Floor, New York, NY 10004-24424 by cashier's check, certified check or postal money order, 

under cover of a letter that identilies the name and Docket number of this action illlcl the name of 

this Court, with a copy to the Director and to the Office of Cooperative Enforcement, Division of 

Enforcement, U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, at the following address: Three 
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Lufayette Centre, 1155 21 ' 1 Street, NW, ·washington, D.C. 20581. and to the Regitma! Counsel, 

U.S. Commodtty Futures Trading Commission, Eastern Re-g~m:al Office, at the foHowing 

address: i 40 Broad-..vay, I 9'h l!loor, New York, NY 10005. 

:\ll payments made pursuant to this Order by Schiavone shaH first he made to the 

defrauded custom.cn; fOr restitution pursuaet to a payment plan that '>Viii be determined hy the 

Court until thost: ;.:mounts (indeding interest) are fully satisfied. All payments afli. .. "T !he 

restitution and disgorgement obligations have been satisfied shall then be applied to the civji 

monetary penalty deserihcd herein. 

SchmV01lc·s rcstitu:ion obligation coincides with hlS disgorgcmeul obligation and with 

~.ht: cnmmal judgment obligation entered against him on September 10, 2004. U.S. Distnd Court 

for the Southern District of N.;;w York in U..\'_ •- Ross, ef aL S.D.N.Y. Docket No. 03 Cr. 1306. 

Accordingly, sah;.;faction of any part of Schiavone's disgorgcment ob!igarion or satisfaction in 

<my purl of Schiavone's crimmal judgment rcstitu~ion obligation shall sJmultaneously result in 

satisfaction of Schiavone's rcsl~tution ob1!gatior: in this matter to the same extent. 

D. Prohibition on Transfer of Funds 

IT IS FIJRTHKR ORDl~RED tJmt Schiavone shall not tran:>.fer or cause others to 

transfer lhnds or other property to the custody, possession or control of any olher person for the 

purpose of conceal!ng such funds or property from the Court, the Plaintiff, the R~Xeiver, or any 

officer that may be appointed by the Coun. 

E. Pet·mancnt Receiver 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Brian Rosner, Esq., Ros11er & Kapicrala, LLP, 26 

BroJ.dway, 22nd Floor, Nc>v York, NY 10004~24424 is appointed as a permanent equity Receiver 

to take into his immediate custody. control, and possession aH ca.sh, cashier's checks, funds. 



assets. and property of Schiavone, including funds or property of investors wherever found, 

whether hdd in the name of Schiavone or otherwise, includmg. but not lintited to, all books and 

records of account and original entry, eleclronicaUy stored data, tape recordings, all funds, 

securities, contents of safety deposit boxes. metals, currencies, coins, real or personal property, 

commodity fiHurcs trad~ng accounts, bank vnd trust accounts, mutua! fund accounts, credit card 

lim>ofcredit accounts and other assets, of whatever kind and nature and wherever situated. and 

authoru:mg, empowering and directing such receiver to collect and take charge of and to hold 

and :>.dminister the same s.ubject to fi.lrthcr order of the Com!, in order to prevent irreparable loss, 

damage and iujury to investors, to conserve and prevent the dissipation of fUnds, to prevent 

further cvaswns and violations of the federal commodity Jaws by Schiavone and to satisfy 

Schiavone's obligatiom; to pay restitution. disgorge his iii-gotten gains and to pay a civil 

monetary pen>1lty. 

F. Notices 

IT lS FURTHER ORDERED that aH notices required to be given by any provision in 

this Order shall he sent by certified mail, return nxx~lpt requested, as follows: 

Notice to Commission: 

Notice lo Receiver: 

Regmnul Counsel 
U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission 
Division of Enforcement- Eastern Regional 001-;::e 
140 Broadway, 191

1: Floor 
New York, New York 10005 
Pbone: (646_) 746-9700 
Fax: (646) 746-9740 

Brian Rosner, Esq. 
Rosner & Napierala, LLP 
26 Broadway, 22flc Floor 
New York, NY 10004-2442 
Phone: (212) 785-2577 
Fax~ (212) 785-5203. 
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G. Jurisdiction 

lT IS FURTHER ORDRRF:D that 1hls Court shall retain jurisdiction of this ca~e to 

assure compliance with thts Order and for all other purposes related to this action. 

J t!1i / 
SO ORDERED, at ~f~·~i}-{) f'N, New York on !hi~ day of_)L{~)f'~.Y." _, 200~ 
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Respectfully snbmi!lerl, 

U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING 
COM:VHSS!ON 
Stephen J. Obic 

RerJl nal Counsd 
- ' J: j " . 

By~.,J · h ~d;;_ 
~.eila L. Marhamati fSM-8016] 
Trial Attomey 
Steven Ringer [SR· 9491] 
Chief Trial Attomey 
US. COMMODITY FJ;TURES TRADING 
COMMISSION 
140 Broadwav, 19:11 Floor 
New York, New YPrk 10005 
(646) "46-9743 
(646) 746-9940 (facScm1ile) 
smmhamati@cftc,gov 


